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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for Aberdeen European
Infrastructure GP Limited {the "Company") for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Company qualifies as a small company in accordance with Section 381-382 of the Companies Act 2006
(the "Act") and the Report of the Directors has therefore been prepared taking into consideration the
provisions of Part 15 of the Act. The Company has taken advantage of exemptions available to small sized
entities as defined in the Act.

In preparing this report, the Directors have taken advantage of the small companies exemption provided by
Section 41B of the Act and have not prepared a strategic report.

Principal activity

The Company's principal activity during the year was to act as General Partner to Aberdeen European
Infrastructure Partners LP ("AEIPLP" or the "Fund"). The Company remains committed to the business of the
Fund and will continue to act as General Partner in the future. The Company is a subsidiary of Standard Life
Aberdeen PLC ("SLA PLC" or, together with its subsidiaries, "the Standard Life Aberdeen Group").

Principal risks and uncertainties
SLA PLC, of which the Company is part, has an established Enterprise Risk Management framework,
integrating aversight of strategic planning, operational management of the business and internal control.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company are integrated into the principal risks of the merged
group under SLA PLC and are therefore not managed separately. Accordingly, the principal risks and
uncertainties of SLA PLC, which include those of the Company, are discussed fully in the SLA PLC Annual
Report and Accounts which does not form part of this report.

The list below does however provide a summary of the key risks facing the Company which are also common
to SLA PLC. Further detalls on each of the risks, together with how they link to the new straleyy, how Lhey
have evolved over the year and how they are managed can be found in SLA PLC accounts.

The principal risks to which the Company is most specifically exposed can be categorised as follows:

Operational risk; 1T fadure and security including cyber risk; third party oversight; and process execution
failure,

Brexit

Recent and ongoing developments in relation to Brexit means there is continued palitical uncertainty over the
timetable and terms on which the UK will leave the EU. The Directors, in conjunction with the Investment
Manager, will continue to follow developments closely and assess their implications in relation to contingency
planning. It is not currently expected that Brexit will have a material impact on the financial results or
operations performed by the Company.

Key performance indicators

Given the straightforward nature of the business, the Directors believe that analysis using key performance
indicators is not necessary or appropriate to understand the development, performance or financial position of
the Company,

Business review
The Company's total comprehensive incame for the year was GBPnil {2017: GBPnil). No dividends were paid
during the year (2017: GBPnil).



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Directors
The Directors at the date of this report are as stated on page 1 and all served during the year, unless
otherwise stated.

Audit information

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Report of the Directors confirm that, so far as
they are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's Independent Auditor is
unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a Director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's Independent Auditor is aware of
that infarmation,

Independent Auditor
KPMG Channel Islands Limited have indicated their willingness to continue in office. A resoluticn to re-appoint
the Independent Auditor will be put forward at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Statement of Directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report of the Directors and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and
applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework,

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for
that year.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« assess the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern: and

» use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are responsible for such internal cantrol as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

By order of the Board

r '\/,‘ ’
-~ .
Director

August 2019



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aberdeen European Infrastructure GP Limited (“the Company™)
which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2018, the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and related notes, including the
accounting policies in note 2.

In our opinion the financia! statements:

¢ give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its results
for the year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reguced
Disclosure Frammework; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities are described below. We have fuffilled our ethical responsibilities under, and
are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have c¢btained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our
opinion.

Going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of
that basis for a period of at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have
nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ report

The Directors are responsible for the Directors' report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
that report and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Directors' report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

« we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors' report;

* in our opinion the information given in that report for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements; and

* in our opinion that report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* the Directors were not entitled to take advantage of the small companies exemption from the requirement
to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Directors' responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 3, the Directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do sc.

Auditor's responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Rachid Frihmat {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Channel Isiands Limited, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Glategny court, Glategny Esplanade

St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 1WR

Date:ﬁAugust 2019



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Note 2018 2017
GBP GBP

INCOME
General Partner's Share - 914,471
Foreign exchange gain - 160
Total income - 914,631
EXPENSES
Administration fees 13,770 14,121
Audit remuneration 5,400 5,500
Management fees (21,756) 899,887
Foreign exchange loss 408 -
Professional fees - (7,982}
Other operating expenses 2,178 3,105
Total expenses - 914,631

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax
Profit on ordinary activities after tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to Equity holder:
Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form part of these financial statements.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2018

Notes 2018 2017
GBP GBP

Assets
Non-current assets
Equity securities - unlisted 4 1 1
Cutrent assets
Receivables 5 - 7,170
Cash and cash equivalents 454,008 460,380
Total current assets 454,008 467,550
Total assets 454,009 467,551
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 7 1,000 1,000
Retained earnings 1 1
Total equity 1,001 1,001
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables and accruals 6 453,008 466,550
Total liabilities 453,008 466,550
Total equity and liabilities 454,009 467,551

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company oni}August 2019
and signed on its behalf by:

Director
August 2019

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form part of these financial statements.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Balance at 1t January 2017

Tota! comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2017

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2018

Share Retained Total
capital earnings equity
GBP GBP GBP
1,000 1 1,001
1,000 1 1,001
1,000 1 1,001

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form part of these financial statements.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is Bow Bells House, 1
Bread Street, London, EC4M 9HH.

The Company's business activities, together with expected future developments and key risks facing the
Company, are detailed in the Report of the Directors.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company onBAugust 2019.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied throughout the year, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Transition to FRS 101

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2018, are the first the Company have prepared in
accordance with FRS 101. The date of transition to FRS 101 for the Company is 1 January 2017. The Company
historically prepared its financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union ("IFRSs").

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under Application of Financial Reporting Requirements
100 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, the financial statements for year ended 31
December 2018 have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

Application of FRS 101, in conjunction with the equivalent disclosures being available in the group accounts of
SLA PLC, has allowed the Company to take advantage of various disclosure exemptions. These are
presentation of a cash-flow statement, standards not yet effective, financial instruments and transactions with
group companies.

{b) New interpretations and amendments to existing standards that have been adopted by the
Company

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

IFRS 15 has replaced 1AS 18 'Revenue’ and related interpretations. IFRS 15 provides a new five-step revenue
recognition model for determining recognition and measurement of revenue from contracts with customers. No
significant impacts to profit or net assets were identified for the Company.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 has replaced IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. There has been no
material impact on the Company's financial performance or positionn and nc comparative numbers have been
adjusted follawing the adoption of IFRS 9.

2.2 Going concern
The Comparry holds positive net assets and has a positive cash position. The Board believes that the Company

holds adequate financial resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)
2.3 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Board of Directors consider Pounds Sterling ("GBP") as the functional and presentation currency of the
Company. This is the currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions of the Company. Although the Company receives fee income and pays
management fees to the Investment Manager in Euro ("EUR"), other operating expenditure and the share
capital of the Company are denominated in GBP.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency assets and liabilities, other than financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are translated into the functionat currency using the exchange rate prevailing
at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

2.4 Financial assets
Equity securities - Unlisted

(a) Classification
The Company classifies its investments in equity securities as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception are financial instruments that are
not dassified as held for trading but are managed, and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with the Company's documented investment strategy.

{b) Recognition, derecognition and measurement
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are
expensed as incurred in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent to initial recognition these financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period they

arise.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

10



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Receivables

In accordance with IFRS 9, receivables are initially recognised at fair value and measured subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less provision for impairment. The Company takes the
practical expedient approach to the impairment of receivables.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balances that are freely available with a maturity of three months or
less. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to
their fair value,

2.7 Payables and accruals

Payables and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method. Payables and accruals are derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the carrying amounts of the
payables and accruals approximate to their fair value.

2.8 General Partner's Share / General Partner's Share receivable

In accordance with Clauses 9.1 and 9.2 of the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement (the
"LPA") dated 1 May 2014, the Company is entitled to receive a General Partner’s Share ("GPS") and there shall
be allocated to the Company as a first charge on the Net Income and Capital Gains of the Fund.

GPS is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. General Partner's Share is initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The GPS is calculated as follows:

(i) inrespect of the period from the Closing Date up to and including the date on which the Investment
Period ends, 1.00% per annum of Total Commitments; and

(i) in respect of the period from the end of the Investment Period up to and including the tenth
anniversary of the Closing Date, 1.00% per annum of Invested Capital; and

(iii) in respect of the period from the tenth anniversary of the Closing Date up to and including the
twenty-fifth anniversary of the Closing Date, 0.65% per annum of Invested Capital.

The GPS shalt be reduced by deducting an amount equal to 100% of any transaction fees, abort fees and
other fees earned by the General Partner, Investment Manager or any associate of either.

11



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.9 Expenses

Expenses are recognised on an accruals basis.

Management fees represent the Company's share of the General Partner fees payable to Aberdeen Standard
Fund Managers Limited ("ASFML", formerly Aberdeen Fund Manager Limited), in lieu of the provision of
services as the Investment Manager to the Fund. Management fees are limited to any surplus income after all

expenses have been settled.

2.10 Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ¢ther comprehensive
income. Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

2.11 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Management have not used any significant accounting estimates or judgements when preparing the financial
statements.

3. EXPENSES
3.1 Audit remuneration

Fees charged by the Company's Independent Auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were GBP5,400 (2017: GBP5,400).

3.2 Staff costs

The Company has no empioyees. The Directors of the Company waived their right to receive Directors'
remuneration,

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
GBP GBP

Equity securities - unlisted 1 1

The Company owns one Membership Share in Aberdeen Infrastructure II - A.B.A. and Aberdeen
Infrastructure 11 - B.B.A.

5. RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
GBP GBP
Amounts due from Group companies - 7,170

Amounts due from Group companies are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.

12



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE GP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2018 2017

GBP GBP
Administration fees 6,749 3,373
Audit fees 5,400 5,400
Amounts due to Group companies 440,859 457,777
453,008 466,550

Amounts due to Group companies include management fees which are unsecured, interest free, have no
fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

2018 2017

GBP GBP
Authorised
Unlimited ordinary shares of GBP1 nominal value unlimited unlimited
Issued and fully paid
1,000 ordinary shares of GBP1 nominal value 1,000 1,000

The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and is entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under paragraph 8(k) of FRS 101 not to disclose
transactions with fellow wholly owned subsidiaries.

An amount owed to the Company by Aberdeen European Infrastructure GP II Limited as at 31 December 2018
amounted to GBPnil {2017: GBP7,170).

9. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING

The Company's immediate parent company is Aberdeen Alternatives (Holdings) Limited and its ultimate parent
company is SLA PLC, which is incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in Scotland.

The results of the Company are consolidated in the Group accounts SLA PLC, which is the largest and smallest
group that the results are consolidated within, which are available to the public and may be obtained from 1
George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2LL,

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

NG subsequent events have occurred between the reporting period andB&ugust 2019 requiring disclosure in the
financial statements.

13
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTNER
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The General Partner presents its annual report and audited financial statements for Aberdeen European
Infrastructure Partners LP (the "Fund" or "Investment Entity”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Limited partnership
The Fund was established on 4 January 2011 and is registered as a limited partnership in England under the
Limited Partnerships Act 1907.

The Fund is a registered dosed-ended investment fund domiciled and established as a limited partnership under
the laws of England. The General Partner is responsible for ensuring that the Fund is always operated and
managed under the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement ("LPA"). The General Partner has delegated
these responsibilities to the Investment Manager,

Notification of name change

With effect from 10 December 2018, Aberdeen Fund Managers Limited changed its name to Aberdeen Standard
Fund Managers Limited {the "Investment Manager"). This name change comes as a result of the merger
between Aberdeen Asset Management pic and Standard Life plc. For the avoidance of doubt, this is simply a
change of name and there is no change to the corporate structure of the Investment Manager,

Principal activity

The Fund was established to invest in primary social and economic infrastructure projects in the European
Union (excluding the UK) which offer investors the opportunity to earn attractive risk adjusted returns with a
low correlation to economic cycles and other investrnent classes for its projected 25 year life.

The Fund invests in social and economic infrastructure projects (e.g. health, defence, aducation, social housing,
government accommodation, custodial facilities, roads, bridges, rail and waste management) underpinned by
long-term secure government contracts characterised by stable, predictable, avallability-based cash flows.

The Fund's objective Is to genetate significant long-term investment yield. It aims to achieve this objective by
investing in a portfolio of high-guality, predominantly operational, Private Finance Initiative ("PFI")/Public
Private Partnerships ("PPP") assets. The portfolic is expected to generate long-term, Inflation-linked cash flows,
principally driven by low-risk, availability-based contracts with government agencies.

Flnancial risk management

The key risks and uncertainties faced by the Fund are managed within the framework established for the
Investment Manager. Exposures to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk arise in the normal course of the
Fund's business. These risks are discussed, and supplementary qualitative and quantitative information is
provided in Note B to the financial statements. The Fund's liquidity risk management is delegated to the
Investment Manager.

Results and review of business
The Fund's total comprehensive income for the year was EUR27,894,026 (2017: EUR44,223,182). Capital
returned during the year amounted to EUR27,689,300 (2017: EUR16,320,000).

Statement of General Partner's responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The General Partner is responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view, in accordance with applicable law (i.e. the Companies Act 2006 as applied to limited
partnerships by the Limited Liability Partnerships (Accounts and Audit) (Application of Companies Act 2006)
Regulations 2008), the LPA and International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union
{"IFRSs"}, of the state of affairs of the Fund and of the profit or loss of the Fund for that year.

In preparing these financial statements, the General Partner is also required to:
« select suitable accounting poliicies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Fund will continue In business.

3



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTMNERS LP

REPORT OF THE GENERAL PARTHNER {ODNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 Decessher 2018

Statemnent of General Partoer’s responsibillities in respect of the financial statements (contimaoerd)

The Gomeral Partrer & respomshie for kesping poper accoumiing recods that discioss with ressomaitie
2OLrary, at any bhme, the fneancs! poaliorn of the Fund and erabie the Ganeral Parer o erswre that the
Tnamca statemmants apgily sl appiicabiiz ke, ERSs and the LPA. The Generall Partner is aiso espansite for
safeqguarding the assats of the Fund amd hemoe far tong eesmnable steps for the grevention and defection off

The Geneval Partner confinms that @ has compled with the above sequvements in preparing the fimanca!
StAternomEs.

Audit information

As at the date of approvai of the Report of the General Pariner, the General Partner confioms that, so fer as the
General Partner & aware, there & ro releant audt nformetion of which the Fund's Independert Awndtor s
wnaware; and the General Partner has takew all the steps that cught to have been taken as a Genera? Partner o
be aware of any relevant audit wwiormation and 1 estabish that the Fund's Independent Auditor s aware of that
nforration.

Subsequent events

Management has evaluated the impact of 3 subsaquent events on the Company occusting between the end of
the reporting penod and 29 April 2019, the date the firancal statements were availab'e to be ssued and has
determined that there were no subsequent evenls requiring adjustment or additional disclosure at the date of
signing this report and the audited financial statewents.

Going concern

The General Partner considers that the Fund has adequate resources to continue n operational existence for
the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the General Partner has taken into account ail ava'labe
information about the foreseeable future and consequently the going concern basis is appropriate in preparing
the financial statements.

Brexit

Recent and ongoing developments around the Brexit process means there is continued political uncertainty over
the timetable and terms on which the UK will leave the EU. The appointed Investment Manager is a global
invesiment manager that has been pianning for a range of scenarios under which the UK couid eventually leave
the EU - including the possibilty of leaving without a dea) - and the Investment Manager has put in place
measures to mitigate these impacts on its customers, clients and operations. The General Partner in conjunction
with the Investment Manager will continue to follow developments closely and assess thelr implications in
relation to their contingency planning. The General Partner's pricrity is to ensure, whatever the circumstances of
the UK's exit from the EU, the Investment Manager is suitably placed to support the Fund.

Independent auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopears Cl1 LLP have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution to re-
appoint the Independent Auditor wifl be put forward at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

o

Ivan Wong
Director

General Partner
29 April 2019



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT MANAGER
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive
The EU Alternative Iinvestment Fund Managers Directive (Directive 2011/61/EU) ("AIFMD"} entered Into force
on 21 July 2011 and member states, including the United Kingdom, were required to transpose this into
national law by 22 July 2013. The AIFMD has been implemented in the United Kingdom by a8 combination of
the HM Treasury Reguiations and FCA handbook rules.

The Investment Manager is the designated Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM™) and is subject to
regulation under the AIFMD. The AIFM has regular reporting responsibilities in accordance with the AIFMD.
The Fund is considered to be an Alternative Investment Fund ("AIF") managed by the AIFM. Whilst the
Investment Manager's reglstration as an AIFM has no direct regulatory bearing on the AIF, the AIFM has,
together with the General Partner, agreed to make avallable certain Information in order to assist the AIFM in
complying with its responsibllities.

Report on the Activities of the Financial Year

Information on the activities of the Fund in each quarter are discussed in the Fund's Limited Partner Reports
which are issued separately to the Fund's Limited Partners on a quarterly basis. The Fund's performance s
discussed on a quarterly basis at the respective investor advisory committees.

Material Changes and Periodic Risk Management
Materlal changes are discussed In the Fund's Limited Partner Reports which are Issued separately to the
Fund's Limited Partners on a quarterly basls.

In relation to Risk Management, please refer to Note 8 in the Notes to the Financial Statements for details
regarding the Fund's exposure to certain Financlal Risks which require disclosure under the AIFMD.
Separately, Operational Risks are detailed In the Operational Risk Management Report which Is available to
relevant regulators and the Fund's Limited Partners upon request. Such a request should be made to the
Investment Manager.



Alrrmation iavestwnent Fund Manapess Directive (ASFND)
Bemoneratinn Disdosure AN Annisal Report and Acrouwnis
Aberdeen Burcpean Infirastruchore Parteers 1P

Rermonevation Polcy

Tihe Standand L fe Abendoen pic Remureration Pofioy apalies with effec: fimm 1 damuary 2008, The purpose of
the Standard Ufe Aberdeen pic Resmuneration Pobcy [the “Policy™) & o document clearly the remumeration
poiices, pracives and procedures of Siandard Ve Abordess. & has been approved by the Standand Life
Aberdeen pic Remuneration Commttes and 5 sulpect to the Resmureratiom Cormemittee’s annual review. Tre
Policy applies to empioyees of the Standard Life Aberdeen growp of companies (“SLA™).

Tive AIFME. Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited & authorised and regulated in the United Xingdom by
the Financial Conduct Authority {(“FCA™) and is 3 wholly owned subsidiany of Standard Life Aberdeen pic.

The Remuneration Commdtee of Standard Life Aberdeen plc adopted 3n AIFM Remuneration Policy to ensure
that the requewements of the Alternative Investment Furnd Managers Directrve {AIFMD} are fully adhered to by
the group. This policy applies to Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited and the Alternative Investment
Funds [(AlFs) 4 manages. This policy is available on request.

Remunesation Principles

SLA apphes Group wide pronciples for cemuneration poicies, grocedures and practices ensuring lhat
remuneration design and the basis for awards wilf be clear, transpareat and fa’r, in line with business strategy,
objectwes, cuiture, values and long term interests of SLA. Remuneration poiicies, procedures and practices
shou'd be consistent with and promote good conduct which includes sound and effect ve nisk management and
not encourage risk tak:ng that exceeds the level of tolerated risk of SLA. Total variable remuneration will be
funded through pre-agreed distribution metrics. Wrere SLA’s financial performance is subdued or negatwve,
total variable remuneration should generally be contracted, taking into account both current remuneration and
reductions in pay-outs of amounts previousty granted and having regard for SLA’s long term economic viability

In addition to applying the SLA wide principies above, Aberdeen Standard Investments {“ASI”) applies a number
of additional principles including the following. when determining remuneration for employees:
al Remuneration should be competitive and reflect both financial, non-financial and personal
performance;
b} Our remuneration design will align the interests of empioyees. shareholders and importantly our
clients/customers;
€} Our remuneratien structure will reward delivery of results over appropriate time horizons and wll
include deferred variable compensation at an appropriate level for the employee’s role;
d) We will provide an appropriate level of fixed remuneration to balance risk and reward.

Governance and Regulatory Compliance

The Remuneration Committee is made up of independent non-executive directors and makes
recommendations to the Board of Standard Life Aberdeen plc {the "Board”} to assist it with its remuneration
related duties. The Chief People Officer of Standard Life Aberdeen is responsible for ensuring the
implementation of the Policy in consultation with the Remuneration Committee as well as other members of
the Executive Committee ("Executive Body”) {as defined by the Board), if appropriate.



Varigtle remumeration s besed o 2 rounded assessment of Grouy, Divisional and individual performance.
Wiver assessimg bndividus! perfomrmance, financiad as well as mon-fimendsl aiteriz are Gker Mo zccount
lrdividual, performance is based on the individual's appraisal, which indudes an emgloyess comgliarce witfr
controls amd applicablie compemy standards including the Graup’s Code of Eftics, imdudimg Treating Customers

Condiicts of ntevest

The Confiicts of interest Policy is designed to avoid conflicts of imterest between SLA 2nd its dients . This Policy
profibits any employee from being involved in decisions on their own remuneration. Furthermore, alf
empioyees zre required o achere to SEA's Global Code of Conduct, whvich encompasses conflicts of interest.

The Palicy should, at all tinves, adhere to local legistation, regulations or other provisions. In circurnstances or
it urisdictions where there s any conflict between the Puolicy and local legisiation, regulations or other
provisions, then the latter will prevail.

Remuneration Framework
Employee remuneration is composed principally of fixed and variable elements of reward as follows:
3} Fied reward {fixed remunertion: salary {and cash allowances, if appropriate]; and Benefits (including
pension}.
b} Variable reward (bonus, a proportion of which may be subject to retention or deferral depending on
rote and regulatory requirements) and senior employees may also be awarded a long-term incentive
award).

Appropriate ratios of fixed: variable remuneration will be set to as ta ensure that:
a) Fixed and variable companents of total remuneration are appropriately balanced and
b) The fixed component is a sufficiently high proportion of total remuneration to allow Standard Life
Aberdeen to operate a fully flexible policy on variable remuneration components, including paying no
variable remuneration component.

Fixed Base salary provides a core reward for undertaking the role, whare appropriate, and depending on the
Remuneration role, geographical or business market variances or other indicators, additional fixed cash allowances
may make up a porticn of fixed remuneration.

Benefits Benefits are made up of: core benefits, which are provided to all employees; and extra voluntary
benefits that may be chasen by certain employees and which may require contribution through salary
sacrifice or other arrangements. Extra voluntary benefits are designed to support the health and
wellbeing of employees through enabling individual setection based on lifestyte choices. Standard Life
Aberdeen wili ensure that the core and voluntary employee benefits policies are in line with relevant
market practice, its views on managing its business risk cbjectives, culture and values and long-term
interests and local requirements.

Pension Standard Life Aberdeen’s pension policies (which consist of defined contribution plans and legacy
defined benefit plans) are in line with legislative requirements, governance structures and market
practice, and refiect Standard Life Aberdeen’s long-term views on risk and financial volatility, its
business objectives, culture and values and long-term interests and local requirements. In certain
circumstances, SLA may offer a cash allowance in lleu of any penslon arrangement.

Annual Employees who have been employed during a performance year {1 January to 31 Decamber) may be
Performance eligible to be considered for an annual bonus in respect of that year. Eligibility criterla for an annual
Bonus Awards bonus are set out in the rules of the relevant bonus plan andfor contract of employment, as

appropriate, The bonus plan in place is designed to reward perfarmance in line with the business
strategy, objectives, culture and values, long term interests and risk appetite of SLA. All Executive
Directors are awarded bonuses under a SLA bonus plan as detailed in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report.




Gt anicthis Se lected Empoyees ey garicipate n other sarighie pay plns e oxamgle, pﬂrhmmi’meﬁwm{
gy Ploes ITAREEmENE, where § s appmprete for ter mie or basress und Mgﬁbmmunhm'
DyeraTihig fERUMETETIon princiges that anply oo the o and, where approaTate, mam.
suhjert Lo spec i proopies gosentimg moeTmes Ml are comphzot wh the sequirements of amy | :
§ appiicEble rege wimry standamd g

Clawhack/Matus

A dawhack/malus princple appies to the varable pay plan. This enablies the Remuneration Commitiee to sack
o recoup the deferred amount of amy umvested varalnle pay, i the exreplional evert of misstatemant or
misleading represestation of performamce; @ sign frant failure of rsk management and control; or serious
misoonduct by an indwviduai.

Guaranteed Variable Remuneration
Guaranteed variable remuneration s exceptional, oocurs orly 0 the context of hiring new staff and is imited to
the first year of service.

AIFMD tdentified Staff
Staff considered AIFMD Identified Staff ame those categories of staff whose professonal activities have a
material impact on the risk profiles of the AlFh or the AlFs that the AIFM manages.

AIFMBD identified staff will include; Senior Management; Risk takers, Staff engaged in contro! functions; and any
employees receiving total remuneration that takes them into the same remuneration bracket as senior
management and risk takers, and whose professonal actwit.es have a material impact on the risk profiles of
the Company or the Funds that the Company manages.

Control Functions
SLA adheres to the principles and guidelines of regulations that apply to SLA in defining control functions.
contro! functions include, but are not necessari'y hm'ted to, Rk, Compiiance, Internal Audn and Actuarial
functions or roles.

SLA will ensure that, as appropriate, senior employees engaged in a control function.
a} Are independent from the Business Units they oversee:
b} Have appropriate authority, and
¢} Their remuneration is directly overseen by the Remuneration Committee.

This is achieved by the main control functions being outside the business, and a material propertion of their
annual incentives being subject to a scorecard based on the perfarmance of the controt function. Performance
against the scorecard is reviewed by the relevant independent governing committee (either Risk & Capital
Committee, or Audit Committee).

Personal Hedging

AIFMD |dentified Staff are not permitted to undermine the risk alignment effects of the AIFMD Remuneration
Code. Personal hedging strategies;, or remuneration-related insurance; or liability-related insurance is not
permissible on remuneration.




Employee Remuneration Disclosure

The table below provides an overview of the following:
s Aggregate total remuneration paid by Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited to its entire staff; and

» Aggregate totai remuneration paid by Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited to its ‘identified Staff.

The ‘Identified Staff’ of Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited are those employees who could have a
material impact on the risk profile of Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limite¢ or the AlF's it manages
{(including Aberdeen European Infrastructure Partners LP}. This broadly includes senior management, risk
takers and control functions. For the purposes of this disclosure, ‘Identified Staff’ includes employees of
entities to which activities have been delegated.

Amounts shown reflect payments made during the financial reporting period in question. The reporting period
runs from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 inclusive.

Aberdeen European

Infrastructure Partners LP

Reporting period: 01/01/18 — ;
31/12/18

Aberdeen Stardard Fund Managers '

Limited staff 1 96 14,153 33
of which

Fixed remuneration 11,259 263
Variahle remuneration 2,894 68
Carried Interest NIL

Aberdeen Staidard Fund Managers

Limited “dentified Staff 2 162 4.261 100
of which

Senior Management 3 16 671 16
Other ‘Identified Staff’ 146 3,590 84

1 As there are a number of individuais indirectly and directly employed by Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited this
figure represents an apportioned amount of SLA’s total remuneration fixed and variable pay, appartioned to the refevant AIF
an an AUM basis, plus any carried interest paid by the AlF. The Headcount figure provided reflects the number of beneficiaries
caiculated on a Full Time Equivalent basis.

2 The Identified Staff disclosure represents total compensation of those staff of the AIFM who are fully or partly involved in the
activities of the AIFM, apportioned to the estimated time relevant to the AIFM, based on their time in role during the
reporting peried and the AIFM's proportion of SLA's total AUM. Across the ‘Identified Staff, the average percentage of AUM
allacation per individual based on work undertaken for Aberdeen Standard Fund Managers Limited as an AIFM was 4.76%.

3 Senlor management are defined in this table as AIFM Directors and members of the Standard Life Aberdeen ple Board,
together with its Executive Committee, Investment Management Committee and Group Product Committee.

4  This figure represents an apportioned amount of the total remuneration of the ‘ldentifled staff attributable to the AlF
allocated on an AUM basis.



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS 1P

STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Thee Gemerail Partmer presents s shrategic report omn the Fund for the yeay ended 31 Decomiper Z)I8.

Resullx and review of business

Tre tola apmprethensive inoome far the year & sef out in tie Setement of Comprefiensie knome o page
14, The Gemeral Partner considens the perfionmance of the Fund diuring the yaar and & financal posihon at the
e of the year, 10 be n Tne with the ong tenm expected performmance o the progect, and s prospeds for the
fuhwe o be saticfactony.

Princival activit
The princpa acwity s investment hoiding. There bhas been no dhange & that: actvilly deing the year.

The Fund's cbjectve s I genevate significant jong-term Ewvestment yiekd, R ams to achieve this cbjedive
from ¥s ivestment in a portfolio of PFL/PPP assets heid ve s Subsidary (please see Mote 5 for further
infarmation), Cooperatiel Aberdeen Infrastruciure BA. ("Coop Al BA™). The pertfoio 5 expeched to generate
long-term, nflation-finked cash fows, princpaly driven by lowrisk, aveibabiity-based contrads with
government agENCes.

The General Pactner has responsth ity for ensurng the Fund is always operated and managed under the terms
of the LPA. The General Partner has delegated these respoensibiaties to the Investment Manager.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The kay rsks and uncertaintes faced by the Fund are managed within the framework establshed for the
Investrnent Manager. Expasures to marxet risk, credit risk and liquidity r'sk a7ise 'n the nommal curse of the
Fund's busmess. These nsks are discussed, and supplementary gualitatve and quanttative information are
provided in Note 8 to the financial statements. The Fund's liquidity risk & managed by the Investment
Manager.

Key performance indicators

The Fund is a feeder vehide in which Stichting Depositary APG Infrastructure Pool 2011 acting in its capacity
as depositary of APG Infrastructure Pool 2011 and Aberdeen Asset Management Plc, to ultimately invest in a
portfolip of PFI/PPP assets. Given the straightforward nature of the business, the Directors of the Genera
Partner are of the opinion that analysis using KPI's is not necessary for the understanding of the development,
performance, or position of the business.

By order of the Board,

e

Ivan Wong
Director
General Partner
29 Aprif 2019

10




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE PARTNERS OF ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

Report an the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In our opinion, Aberdeen European Infrastructure Partners LP's flnancial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the qualifying partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union; and

» have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applied to
qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
(the "Annual Report"), which comprise: the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018; the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes In net assets
attributable to the limited partners for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which
include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibiliies under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for
the audit of the financlal statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the qualifying partnership in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the finandal statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
ISAs (UK) require us to repert to you when:

« the general partner's use of the going concern basls of accounting In the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

« the general partner has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the qualifying partnership’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basls of accounting for a period of at least twelve manths from the date when the finandal statements are
authorised for Issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement Is not a guarantee as to
the qualifying partnership's abliity to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United
Kingdom may withdraw from the European Unlon are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potentfal
implications on the qualifying partnership and the wider economy.

1



INDEPERDENT AVDITOR'S REFPORT

TO THE PARTNERS OF ABERDEEN EUROPEAN TNIFRASTRUCTURE PARTHNERS 1P
{CONTINUED)

Reporting on other information

The otther infonmaiion compises 2 of tine imforerstiom im e Ammusl Report otiver than the firencsl stfeoments
2l our auditors’ report thereom. The gemeral gartmer  is responsible for dhe other informatiom. Our opimiom om
tine fmacial statements does nt oover the other miommation and, sooodingly, we do not ogress an audi
apfnion or, except to the extent afhenmise espictly stted i this nepart, amy form of assance thereom,

In conmection wih owr audit of tive Rnancia! stztrmens, our respamsility & to read the other wfammation and,
i doing 0, comsider whether the other inforpratiion s matzcaly monssient with the francal siatesmarks or
o jowwdedne obtained in the audi, or otfversse 2ppears to be materialy misstated. H we dentfy an
apparent material inconsistency or maierial missiziement, we are requed D perform procedures to moncude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial siatemesits or 2 material misstatement of the other
information. F, based on the work we have performed, wee contude that there s a maternal msstatement of
this ather information, we ane required o report that fact We have nothing o report based on these
With respect 1o the Strategic Report and Report of the General Partner, we also considered whether the
disciosures required by the LK Companies Act 2606 as appied o quaitfying parimerships have been induded.

Basad on the responsibilities described above and owr work urdertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs {UK)
require us a'so to report certain opinions and matters as described beiow.

Strategic Report and Report of the General Partner

In our opinion, based on the work undestaker n the course of the audi, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Report of the General Partner for the year ended 31 December 2018 is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with app/icable egal requirements.

In iight of the knowledge and understanding of the qualifying partnership and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any materiai misstatements In the Strategic Report and Report of the
General Partner.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibifities of the general partner for the finandal statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of General Partner's responsibilities In respect of the finandal
statements set out on pages 3 and 4, the general partner is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. The general partner is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the general partner Is responsible for assessing the qualifying
partnership's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the general partner either intends to liquidate the
qualifying partnership or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the finandal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

12



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE PARTNERS OF ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP
{CONTINUED)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit {continued)
Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and onty for the partners of the qualifying partnership
as a body In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships by the Partnerships
(Accounts) Regulations 2008 and for no other purpose. We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other persan to whom this report Is shown or Into whose hands
It may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 as applied to qualifying partnerships we are required to repott to you If, In our
opinlon:

= we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the qualifying partnership, or returns adequate for gur
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of general partner's remuneration specifted by law are not made; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Adrlan Peacegood (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhauseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Guernsey, Channel Islands

2oApril 2019
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ABFEDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHFNSIVE TNCOME
For the year ended 31 Decessber 2018

Income

Nzt chamoes i far value of finandal assets a3t far valse
Through proft or foss

Met foreig exchange {loss} / gaw

Tota! mcome

Expenses

Administraton fees

Audiit fees

Depository fees

Legai and professiona! fees
Genera! Partner's Share
Interest expenses

Other operating expenses
Total expenses

Prof't on ordinary advities

Total comprehensive income for the year

2.13,11

2018 207
R R
5,320,129 & SR 265
23,910,610 3% 982 2490
{1,992} s
29,228,757 44,510,531
55,888 45,992
57,467 42 586
59,943 53,029
109,418 143,545
1,055,169 -
4 615
1,827 1,582
133,721 287,749
27,854,026 44 273,182
27,894,026 44,223,182

The notes on pages 18 to 38 form part of these financial statements.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2018

Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Receivables and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets attributable to the Limited Partners
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Deferred income

Current liabilities
Deferred Income
Payables and accruals
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets attributable to the Limited Partners

Limited Partners' interest represented by:
Partners’ capital
Partners’ current accounts

Notes

2.8

2018 2017

EUR EUR
295,202,105 292,253,945
295,202,105 292,253,945
3,376,949 7,015,165
22,847 65,612
3,399,796 7,080,777
298,601,901 299,334,722
507,969 1,463,008
2,100,000 2,100,000
146,224 128,732
2,246,224 2,228,732
2,754,193 3,691,740
295,847,708 295,642,982
133,131,700 160,821,000
162,716,008 134,821,982
295,642,982

295,847,708

The finandal statements were authorlsed for Issue by the Board of Directors of the General Partner of the

Fund and signed on its behalf by:

Director
29 April 2019

The notes on pages 18 to 38 form part of these financial statements,
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE

LIMITED PARTNERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018

As at 1 January 2017

Retum of capita’

Total comprehensive moome for the year

{Decrease) [ norease in net assels atiributable to the
Limited Pariners

As at 31 December 2017

Retumn of capital

Total comprehensive income for the year

{Decrease) / ncrease in net assels atinbutabie i the
Limited Partners

As at 31 December 2018

Partmers’ Partness’ Tolad
Capital axrent
aceounts
HIR EUR BER
177 141,000 oG5O8 800 267,739,800
{26,320,006} - {16,320,000})
- 44 723,182 4922318
{16,320,000) 44,223 182 27 903,182
160,821,000 134821982 295,642,982
(27,689,300} - {27,689,300)
- 27,894,025 27,894,026
(27,685,300} 27,894,026 204,726
133,133,700 162,716,008 295,847,708

The notes on pages 18 to 38 form part of these financial statements.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Notes

Cash flows from operatirig activities

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net changes in fair value of financlal assets at fair value

through profit or loss 4
Bisposals of financial assets held at fair value through profit

or loss 4
Decrease / (Increase) in recelvables and prepayments

Decrease / (increase) in intercompany loans recelvable
{Decrease) / increase in payables and accruals

Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Return of capital 2.7

Net cash flow used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2018 / 2017

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2018 / 2017

The notes on pages 18 to 38 form part of these financial statements.
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2018 2017

EUR EUR
27,894,026 44,223,182
(23,910,610) (39,582,240)
20,962,450 8,892,512
2,010,209 (4,618,178)
1,628,007 (628,338)
(937,547) 3,083,126
27,646,535 10,970,064
(27,689,300) (16,320,000)
(27,689,300) (16,320,000)
(42,765) (5,349,936)
65,612 5,415,548
22,847 65,612




ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STRATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2018

i GENERAL INFORMATION

The Fund & estabished as a limited partnership unider the bas of Bngland. The adiress of s ragikisred office s
Bow Bells House, 1 Bread Street, Landon, EC4M SHH.

Tihe @ErnCiml antivity of the Fund fis to mest o grimary socal and emnomic infresudue grojects e Burspean
timem {eciading the L) wihidh affor meestors the cpporhundy o ean attrackive rsk adjusted returms aith a ow
comreltion tn econumt Cpcies and otfer investment dasses for &S projected 25 year fe.

The Furdls investment adivities ane smenaged by the General Partner who hes deegated these responsibiiites 1o the
Investment Mamager, with the administration delegated o the Adminisirator.

The fund's capita is represented by the net asseis attributable o the Limited Partmess.

Coop Al BA s the Subsidiary which the Fund has invested in. Aberdeen Infrastnicmsre {HoldCo) B.Y. {"AI (HoldCo)
B.V.") & the subsdiary heid by Coop Al BA. {coflectively the “Subsidiaries™).

These fimanoal stalemenis were authorsed for issue by the Board of Drectors of the Gerera' Partner of the Fund on
23 Apn 2019,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The pnnOpal acoount ng poioes appaed in the preparation of these finandal statements are set out below. These
poicies have been cons'stently appiied throughout the year, unless otherwise stated,

21 Basis of preparation

The Francial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance wth applicable law (1.e. the Companies Act
2006 as appiied to iimited partnerships by the Limited Liabiiity Partnerships (Accounts and Audt) {Appiication of
Companies Act 2006) Regulations 2008), the LPA and Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
Furopean Union {"IFRSs”). The General Partner has considered the presentational reguirements of the UX
Companies Act 2006 and amended the format so that the financial statements present each line item in a manner
that reflects its nature. The financial statements have been prepared under the tistorical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of finandial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Fund will continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Generai Partner is satisfied that it operates in such a way to
ensure the Fund will continue to be a going concern, given its expected future cash flows from investing activities
and its ability to call undrawn commitments (Note 13).

The Fund meets the definition of an Investment Entity as defined by IFRS 10 and is required to account for the
investments in Subsidiaries at fair value through profit and loss.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates, Tt also requires the General Partner to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Fund's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in Note 9.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 January 2018

IFRS 9 'FAnancial Instruments' became effective for annual perfeds beginning on or after 1 January 2018. It
addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and liabilities and replaces the
multiple classification and measurement models in IAS 39,

Classification and measurement of debt assets is driven by the entity's business model for managing the finandal
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the finandal assets. A debt instrument |s measured at
amortised cost if the objective of the business model is to hold the financial asset for the collection of the contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash flows under the instrument solely represent payments of prindpal and Interest
(SPPI). A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income If the objective of the
business model is to hold the financial asset both to collect contractual cash flows from SPPI and to sell. All other
debt instruments must be recognised at fair value through profit or loss. An entity may however, at Initial
recognition, irrevocably designate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition incensistency. Derivative and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless, for equity instruments not held for trading, an irrevocable
option is taken to measure at fair value through other comprehensive income. IFRS 9 also Introduces a new
expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model.

In determining the value of the Fund's investments in Subsidiaries, it has aiways been the Fund's policy to fair value
both the equity and shareholder debt investments in its infrastructure assets together where they will be managed
and valued as a single investment, as they were invested in at the same time and cannot be realised separately. In
light of these facts, with the application of IFRS 9, the General Partner has determined that there will be no impact
to the Fund as these investments are already designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers', specifies how a company should recognise revenue, as well as
requiring those companies to provide users of financial statemnents with more informative and relevant disclosures. It
replaced TAS 18 which covered contracts for goeds and services and IAS 11 which covers construction contracts, The
new standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers.
Management has assessed the Income streams disclosed in the financial statements and have concluded that no
change is required to be made as the recognition methodology of income as they were in llne with the new
standards recommendations in the prior year.

{b) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 January 2018 and have not been
early adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning
after 1 January 2018, and have not been applied In preparing these finandial statements. None of these are
expected to have a significant effect on the finandal statements of the Fund.
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ABERDEEN BUROPEAM INIRASTRAICTURE PARTNERS 1P

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 Decessber 2018

2 SURMEMARY OF SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (CONTINUED)
22  Inveshwenl Estity

221 Inveshment Entity

The Fund s mmuliple wrsiatad imesiors amed halds mruitgte deestrments. Swnership ntevests i the Fund are in
the: form of fimited gertnersiip interests wibidh are dasified as fabities wunder the provisions of 125 32. The Ganeral
Pastner has defermmed Hai the Furd meets the defieltior of an Ivestment Eniily per IFRS 10 as the folliowiimg
condtions exis:

a} The Fund has oldained funds for the purpose of providing nvestons avestmentt wcdh grifessanal vestment
mdnagement servides;

b The Fond’s business pauposz, wisch was communicated diredtly In investors, & vesting for capital
apprecaion and Fveshment scoome; and

c} The invesiments 2re messuwed and evalated on a B vaiue bass.

2.2.1.1 Investment Entity status
In determining the Fund's status 25 an [nwvestment Entty i accordance with IFRS 10, the Geners! Partrer
considered the followng:

aj The Fund bas rased cormsmtments from a number of imvestors in order to reise capital o imvest o
infrastructire nvestmests and to provide the investors with investment management services with respedt
to these infrastruchure rvestmerts;

b} The Fund mtends ta generate capdal and ncome returns from its infrastructure investments which will, in
turn, be distnibuted in accordance with the LPA to the Limited Partners; and

Q) The Fund evaluates s infrastructure rwestments performance on a ir va'ue basis, 'n accordance with the
policies set out n these financial statements.

Although the Fund met a+ three definng crtena, the General Partner has also assessed tr e business purpose of the
Fund, the investment strategies for the infrastructure investments, the nature of any earnings from the infrastructure
investments and the fair value modeis. The General Partner made this assessment in order to determine whether
any additional areas of judgement exist wth respect to the typical characteristics of an Investment Entity versus
those of the Fund.

2.2.2 Subsidiaries

Where the Fund is deemed to control an underlying portfoiio company either directly or indirectly through a holding
company subsidiary and whether the control be via voting rights or through the ability to direct the relevant activities
in return for access to a significant portion of the variable gains and Josses derived from those relevant activities, the
underlying portfolio company and its results are not consolidated and are instead reflected at fair value through the
profit or loss. As at 31 December 2018, the Fund is directly invested in one such portfolic company.

The Fund does not have any other direct subsidiaries other than those determined to be Investment Entities,
Investment Entity subsidiary investments are measured at fair value through profit or foss and are not consolidated
in accordance with IFRS 10,

The Fund operates as an investment structure whereby the Fund (via its subsidiaries) invests and commits to invest
into various portfolio companies through the Subsidiaries {described above). As at 31 December 2018, there were no
outstanding capital commitment obligations with respect to specific portfolio company acquisitions and no amounts
due to the portfolio companies for unsettled purchases.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Investment Entity (continued)

2.2,2 Subsidiaries {continued)

The Fund primarily invests into the portfolio companies by purchasing, indirectly through its Investment Entity
subsidiaries, the ordinary equity and subordinated loan notes of these private finance Initiative companies. The
portfolio companies pay cash interest or accrue interest on the debt held by the Investment Entity subsidiaries, and
repay debt based on the terms of the respective agreements. Cash dividends may be paid based on the portfolio
company's operating results and are at the discretion of the Board of Directors of the respective portfolic companies
which are then paid up to the Fund directly or through the relevant holding company. There are no amounts due or
accrued for preferred dividend or in-kind returns based on any of the shareholder agreements.

Movements in the fair value of the Fund's underlying portfolio companies held via the Investment Entity subsidiaries
and the existence of unfunded commitments may expose the Fund to potential gains or losses.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The operating and investing activitles of the Fund are denominated in Euro. As such the performance of the Fund is
measured and reported in Euro. The General Partner considers Euro as the currency that most faithfully represents
the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Fund. The financial statements are
presented In Euro, the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
date of the transaction. Forelgn currency assets and llabilities, other than financlal assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevafiing at the Statement
of Financial Position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from translation are included In the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit aor
loss are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within "Net changes in fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss".

24 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(a) Classification
Financlal assets and financial liabllities are classified as held for trading or designated as at fair value through profit
or loss by the General Partner at inception:

(1) Financial assets and labllities held for trading

A finandal asset or finandal liability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or if on iniial recognition is part of a portfolio of
identifiable financial investments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of shart-term profit taking.
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ABERDEEN BUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

F A SUMMARY OF SEGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {COMYINUED)
24 Faamcial asxeits and financial Eabilties at fair valoe through prolt or loss {continoed)
{=a) Classilvcalhon {Continoed}

{7) Fimpacial axsets and Eabilities beld for t7ading {conlinmed)
Tie Fond dif mot hold sy fcance asels or tebdibes held for trading 25 & 31 December 2018 or
31 Dorerwver 2017

{i} Fimawcial ascels and Babilftics desiguated at fodr valine throogh profit or loss ot inception
Fimamcal assets and Francial kabilties desigrated o far value fhrough poft o loss 2t sceplion are
fransial mstraments that are not classibed as held for trading but are rranaged, amd itheir performance is
evaluated on 2 far vadue basks in accordance with the Fund's documented nvestmert strategy.

The Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager to eveluale the wificrmation about these Fnancal assets
anxt Tadhilfties on a fair value basis tegether with other related firgnoall wnformation.

{b) Recognition, derecognition and measurement
Firancal assets and Fnancai Febilities at far value through proft or ioss are niiely recognsed at far value.
Transaction cosis are expensed as incurred m the Statement of Comprehensive Inmme.

Fnandal assets are derecogmised when the rights to receive cash flows from the vestraents have exp'red or the
Fund has transferred substantially ali risks and rewards of ownership.

Subsequent to inital recognition, ali financia! assets and financial Fabifties at fair vaiuve through profit or loss are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'finandal assets or financial
liabilites at faw value through profit or kss' category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
w:thin "Net changes in faT vaue of financial assets and Labilities at far vaiue through profit or 0ss’ In the pediod n
which they arise.

The Fund has always measured bath debt and equity investments at fair value. In the prior year the debt
investments were described as loans and receivables. This has been updated in the current year finanda! statements
with all investments now recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as ‘Financial assets at fair vatue through
profit or loss”.

{c) Fair value estimation
Fair vafue is the pnce that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabdlity in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Fund's valuation technique for determining the fair value of its investments in Subsidiaries is the net present
value of estimated future cash flows based on a discounted cash flow model.

The discounted cash flow model considers the total equity and debt investments made into the portfolio companies
Indirectty through the Fund’s Subsidiaries. The Fund's policy is to manage and value the equity and shareholder debt
investments in infrastructure assets as a single investment measured at fair value, because the investment was
made at the same time and cannot be realised separately. The Generzl Partner considers that equity and debt share
the same characteristics and risks and they are therefore treated as a single unit of account for valuation purposes
and a single class for disclosure purposes.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(c) Fair value estimation {(continued)

The discount rate used by the Fund is based on the risk-free rate of the economic environment in which portfolio
companies operate and is adjusted with other factors such as liquldity, credit and market risk factors. The cash flows
used in the discounted cash flow moded are based on projected cash flows or earnings of the portfolio companies.

25 Receivables and prepayments

Receivables are inibally recognised at fair value and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
jnterest rate method. Prepayments are amounts pald in advance and amortised over the relevant pericd.

Such assets are short term in nature and the carrying value of these assets is considered to be approximate to their
fair value. A}l assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. if any such indication exlsts, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated based on expected discounted
future cash flows. Any change in levels of impairment is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss is reversed at subseguent financial reporting dates to the extent that the asset’s carrylng
amount does nat exceed its carrying value, had no impairment been recognised.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balances that are freely avaflable and other short-term highly liguid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less, and bank overdraft.

2.7 Distributions payable to the Limited Partners

Proposed distributions to the Limited Partners are recognised in the Staterment of Comprehensive Income when they
are appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the Fund. This typicelly occurs when a proposed
distribution is ratified at a General Pariner's meeting. The distribution is recognised as a finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any capital returned is recognised in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Attributable to the Limited Partners. Subject to Clause 10 of the LPA, all income and capital proceeds of the Fund
shall be distributed between the Partners in order of priority (after payment of expenses and liabilities of the Fund)
in accordance with Clause 14.1 of the LPA.

2.8 Payables and accruals and deferred income

Payables and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Payables and accruals are derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. Deferred income relating to General Partner's Share Is credited to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as the services are provided by the General Partner.

2.9 Interest income and dividend income

Interest income from shareholder debt that is measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised as It accrues
by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which Is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the finandal asset to the asset’s carrying
value or principal amount. The remaining changes in the fair value movement of the laans are recognised separately
within 'Net changes in fair value of finandal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss' in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income. It also includes interest income from cash and cash equivalents.

Dividend income Is recognised when the right to recelve payment is established.



ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COXNTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACODUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

21 Expense

Fepenses are reocorsed Gm a0 200uals bas s,

211 Taxation

The Fund s domdcded 3 Englend. Under the qurent Bws of England, there is mo noome, estale, aomporion, Epts!
gars or gther tes payable by the Fund Amy ofher tzx febiity ansng on the adivities of the Fund w3 be borne Iy
212 Net assets attribuiable to the Limited Pariners

Cwnership mterests in the Fund are in the form of an wiErest i the net assets atribulabie o the {imied Partrers.
Met assets atfributable to the Limited Partners are classified as a foandal kabifity, due to a finie ife and aconbachus!
payment provisions o each of the Limied Partners withn the 1PA.

MNet assets attributable o Limited Partners’ apita! are carried st amaortised cost

2.13 General Partner’'s Share

Under Clause 9 of the LPA, the Geners! Pertner shalt be entitled o receive from the Fund an alocation as a first
charge on net Income and capitaf gains by way of a Generz' Partner's Share ("GPS’).

The GPS payables shall be reduced by deducting transaction fees, investrent related fees, directors’ fee etc., earned
by the General Partner, Investment Manager or assocates of either of them.

Further details on GPS is disclosed in Note 11.
2.14 Allocation of profits and losses

a) Subject to clause 9.5(¢} of the LPA, every Limited Partner has an interest in every asset of the Fund and,
accordingly, all Income, Capital Gains and Capital Losses shall (after the allocation of the General Partner's
Share) be allocated to the Partners so that the balances on their accounts shall reflect their respective
entitiements to receive distributions in accordance with the provisions of Clause 10.1.

b) If a particular aliocation of Capital Gain and/or Income is assumed in computing the Tax Credits available to
the Partners for the purpose of calculating when each Partner has received sums equal to the aggregate of
amounts under Clause 10.1 then, notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause 9.5, such Capital Gain
and/for Income shall be allocated in accordance with that assumption.

c) The Investment Manager may in its discretion, alflocate items of Income, Capital Gains, Capital Losses and

Expenses to particular Investors up to the maximum amount available, with corresponding adjustments to
the allocation of the other items.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.14  Allocation of profits and losses (continued)
Net income, net losses, capital gains and losses allocated to each Limited Partner shall be credited or debited to the
Limited Partner's income or capital account. Accordingly, the General Partner has determined that all net increases or

decreases on assets and liabilities categorised as fair value thraugh profit or loss, will be bocked through the capital
account.

2.15 Undrawn committed capital

Undrawn committed capital from the Limited Partners is not shown on the Statement of Financial Position, as
undrawn committed capital represents a loan commitment, that is scoped out of IFRS 9,

2.16 Carried interest

In accordance with the LPA, the Carried Interest Partner may be entitled to receive the Carried Interest Entitlement
which is defined in the LPA as the entitlement of the Carried Interest Partner to Carmried Interest as calculated in
accordance with Schedule 4 of the LPA,

Carried interest represents a contingent liability due to the uncertain timing and realisable value of the distribution
and as such has been disclosed in the financial statements, refer to Note 15.

3. INTEREST INCOME

2018 2017
EUR EUR
From financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,320,129 4,528,266
4. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Net changes in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
2018 2017
EUR EUR
As at 1 January 292,253,945 261,164,217
Disposals (20,962,450) (8,8592,512)
Net changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 23,910,610 39,982,240
As at 31 December 295,202,105 292,253,345
Change in unrealised gain for Level 3 assets held as at year end and
included in net changes in failr value of financial assets at fair value 23,910,610 39,982,240

through profit or loss
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRIUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STAYTEMENTS (CONTIRURD)
Fox the year ended 31 Decomber 20138

4. FIRANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH FROFIT OR LOSS {CONTINUED)

2018 2017
Fnaacial assets at fair valwe %o of met Y of net
through profit or loss Fax value aseks Fair walue assehc
EUR EUR
Equity secusities 237,300,165 50,14 232,153,945 78.53
Delit securbes 58, 106000 19.64 &3, 100,000 2832
Investmments i Subsidiaries 295,202,165 978 297,253,945 98.85

Fhe deb! secures have aways been measured & far value. These mesimerts were previously desoribed as loans
and recevatites. This note has been updated o ndude a1 investrments as delbt secunites weve previcusly segregated
inko @ separate note.

5. SUBSIDIARIES

The Fund operates as an integrated structure whereby the Fund wwesis solely mio the Subsidiaries. Total
investments made by the Fund into the Subsidiary cunng the year ended 31 Decermber 2518 were EURN {2017:
EURNd). Total mvestments made by the Fund into the indirect subsidiary amounted to EURRE (2017: EURnIl). As at
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 there were no @ap’a’ conyniarent chigstions and no amounts due to
the Subs'diaries for unsettled purchases.

The Subsidiaries of the Fund are as foilows:

Address of the Principal Date of Country of
Subsidiary registered office activity incorporation  incorporation Holding %
Coop AL BAA.  Strawnskylaan Investment 25 June 2012 Ketherlands 100
303, WTC A- hold:ng

Subsidiary held through Coop AI B.A.

Al (HoldCo) Strawinskylaan Investment 19 July 2011 Netherlands 100
B.V. 303, WTC A- holding
6. RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017
EUR EUR

Intercompany foan - Aberdeen Infrastructure (Holdco) B.V. 768,980 2,396,987

General Partner's Share 2,607,969 4,618,178
3,376,949 7,015,165

The intercompany loans with Aberdeen Infrastructure (Holdco) B.V. which were short-term loans to cover expenses
of the Subsidiary are repayable on demand and do not incur interest.

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of receivables and prepayments approximate
their fair value.
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ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

7. PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Administration fees 21,948 11,097
Audit fees 36,252 36,655
Depository fees 41,232 26,908
Legal and professional fees 46,792 54,072
146,224 128,732

As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of payables and accruals approximate their
fair vaiue.

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Fund's finandial risk management is to manage and control the risk exposures of its investment
portfolio. The General Partner has overall responsibility for overseeing the management of financial risks. The review
and management of financial risks are performed by the Investrnent Manager, which has documented procedures
designed to identify, monitor and manage the financial risks to which the Fund is exposed. This note presents
information about the Fund's exposure to finandal risks, its objectives, policies and processes for managing risk and
the Fund's management of its finandial resources.

The Fund, through its Subsidiaries owns a portfollo of investments predeminantly in the subordinated loan notes
(subordinate to senior debt) and ordinary equity of PFI/PPP companies. These companies are structured at the
outset to minimise financial risks of acquiring and holding the investment. The Fund primarily focuses its risk
management on the direct financial risks of acquiring and holding the portfolios, but continues to manitor the
indirect financial risks of the underlying projects through representabion, where appropriate, on the Boards of the
project companjes and the receipt of regular financial and operstional performance reports.

8.1 Financial risk factors
8.1.1 Market risk

Market risk Is defined as the potential loss in value or eamings of the Fund arising from changes In external
market, factors such as:

= interest rates (Interest rate risk);
« foreign exchange rates {currency risk); and
* equity markets {other price risk).

The investments are susceptble to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
instruments. The Fund has an Investment Manager who provides the General Partner with investment
recommendations. The Investment Manager's recommendations are reviewed by the General Partner before
the investment decisions are implemented.

The performance of the investments held by the Fund are monitored by the Investment Manager on a
monthly basis and reviewed by the General Partner on a quarterly basis.
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ROTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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8.

&

FENANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINRIED)
Fimaneial risk Factors {continned)
8.1 Market rate risk {ostisued)

{a) Price risk

Rathurms Froem the Fund's mvestments are aifected by the price 2t winidh they are aoqired. The value of
these westments wil be a fundbon of Bhe dsmunied velue of they execdad fubure cash fiows, and as
such wil wary wih, infer afa, movements in meres rates, mavket rices and the oompetiion for such
S,

Proe sk anses from the Fund’s exposuse (o investments W Subsidicres. The Fund underiakes a Full
assessmert of each eniity's potentia! for vaue creation prior (o entevng nic 2 new transaction. Thereafter,
the performance of each investment s continually moninred and attion tzken as deemed appropriate in the
omumstances.  Further information aboul the Fuws senstivly o changes in the fair value of its
mestiments 1 Subsidarnies is set out belowr.

At the repoeting dalz the carrying vakue of the investments n Subisidiaries amountad to EUR295,202,105
{2017: FUR292,253,945). For inveshments carmed 2t fair value Ywough proft or loss, changes in Tair value
vioud have a direct impact on tota!l comprehensive incoxme for the year. The table below sets out the
sensitivity of total comprehensive income for the year to a 10% change wm far value of its .nvestments in
Subskderes as at the Statement of Financial Position date.

Effect of investments in Subsidiaries far values on tolz! comprehensve income for the year:

2018 2017
EUR EUR
Effective of 10% increase in fa’r value of the investments in
Subsidiaries 29,520,211 29,225,395
Effective of 10% decrease in fair value of the investments ‘n
Subsidiaries (29,520,211) (29,225,395)

(b) Currency risk

The Subsidiary in which the Fund invests conducts its business and pays interest, dividends and principal in
Euro. The Fund monitors its foreign exchange exposures using its near-term and long-term cash flow
forecasts. The Fund's policy is not to use foreign exchange hedging. The Fund's liabilities denominated in
Pound Sterling at their carrying amount are summarised below;

2018 2017
Liabilities EUR EUR
Pound Sterling
Manelary fiabilides 104,592 101,823

The table below summarises the sensitivity of the Fund's monetary liabilities to changes in foreigh exchange
movements at 31 December 2018 and 2017. The analysis is based on the assumptions that the relevant
foreign exchange rate increased/decreased by 5% to Euro, with ali other variables held constant. This
represents management’s best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the foreign exchange rates, having
regard to historical volatility of those rates.
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8.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors {continued)
8.1.1 Market rate risk (continued)

(h) Currency risk (continued)

2018 2017
Liabilities EUR EUR
Pound Sterling .
Monetary liabilities 5,250 5,091

As at 31 December 2018, the foreign currency exchange rate applied was EUR/GBP 0.8976 (2017:
EUR/GBP 0.8877).

(c) Interest rate risk

The Fund has an indirect exposure to changes in interest rates through its investment in project companies,
which are in part financed by senior debt, Senior debt finandng of project companies is generally elther
through floating rate debt or fixed interest rate bonds. Where senior debt is financed through floating rate
debt, the projects typically have concesslon length hedging arrangements in place, which are monitored by
the project companies’ managers, finance parties and boards of directors.

The Fund, through its Subsidiaries invests in subordinated loan notes (subordinate to senior debt) of project
companies, usually with fixed and variable interest rate coupons. Where floating rate debt is owned, the
primary risk is that the fund's cash flows will be subject to variation depending upon changes to base
Interast rates. The pertfolio's cash flows are continually monitored and re-forecast both over the near future
and the long-term (over the whole period of projects’ concessions) to analyse the cash flow returns from
investments.

Interest rate risk arises from the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on
the fair value of finandal assets and liabllities and future cash flows. The Fund holds debt securities that
expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk. The Fund's policy requires the Investment Manager to
manage this risk by reviewing fluctuations of the interest rate sensitivity gap of finandal assets and liabilities
on a quarterly basis and the Investment Manager of the Fund to review on a quarterly basis. Interest rates
on the investments in Subsidiaries are fixed.

(d) Inflation risk

The Fund's profect companies are generally structured so that contractual income and costs are either
whally or partially linked to specific inflation, where possibie, to minimise the risks of a mismatch between
Income and costs due to movements in inflation indexes. The Fund's overall cash flows are estimated to
partially vary with inflation. The effect of these inflation changes do not always immediately flow through to
the Fund's cash flows as there is a time lag due to financial models only being updated on a 6 monthly
basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANRAGEMENT (CORTINLUED)
Fimancial risk factors (contimeed)
8.1.2 Credik risk

Credt risk & the risk that 3 counterparty of e Fund well be wunabie or umailimg 50 rast 2 oormmitmenk tihat
& has enteved o with the Fund. The Fumnd hes inveszed am the dndmedt sulbssdary, A1 {HoidCo} B.Y.. The
Fumd's mesr terin cash flow forecasts ae used 10 momior the tming of ceh ecepls from projedt
requizly wpdated by project companies for the purposes of demonsbating the projecs’ abslty to pay
terest and dividends based on a sat of delalied azsumptiors. Many of the Fund's Twestments and thew
subsiiary entibes generatly receive revenee fram goverrynent depariimants, public sedor or iocal authonty
cherts, Therefore a signifcant portion of the Fund's meverue arses from counterpaties of good fnanciat
staring.

The Fund & ako relant on the projedts’ subooniraciors comdinueng to perform their service defivery
obigatons such that revenues o projects are not dsmapted. The Fund has a subcontractor counterparty
monkoring procedure in plce. The oedi standig of suboooiractors s reviewed and the risk of default
estimated for each sgnificant counterparty postion. Monterng s ongoing and period end positons are
reported to the Investment Manager on a quarterly basis.

No dasses within loans and recevabies or bade and other recewables contain impaired assets The
maxwmum exposure o aedit risk over financal assets 's the @rying vaue of those assels in the Statement
of Financial Posiben and as set out below:

2018 2017

EUR EUR
Investmenrts in Subsidiaries - debt securities 58,100,000 60,100,000
Receivables 3,376,949 7,015,165
Cash and cash equivalents 22,847 65,612
Tota! 61,499,796 67,180,777

The main concentration of credit risk to which the Fund is exposed arises from the Fund's investments in
the debt securities companent of the Fund's financia! assets carried at fair value. The maximum exposure to
credit risk as a result of counterparty defauit equates to the current carrying value of these financlal assets,
However, this risk is spread over 4 debt securities of different investments.

Cash transactions are limited to Lloyds Bank which is a financial institution with a long term debt credit
rating of A+ (2017: A) and Barclays Bank with a long term debt credit rating of A (2017: A) as rated by the
rating agency, Standard & Poor's. All debt investments represent private debt investments executed in
accordance with the investment objective of the Fund.

In accordance with the Fund's policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Fund's credit risk exposure on a
monthly basis, and the General Partner reviews it on a quarterly basis.
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8.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Financial risk factors (continued)
8.1.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial obiigations as they fail due. The
Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficent financial
resources and liquidity to meet its liabilittes wihen due. The Fund’s activity is furided by long-term funding,
as It Is closed ended and hence investors do not have the option to redeem their investment in the Fund.
The Fund is exposed to limited liquidity risk. The Fund's liquldity risk management is delegated to the
Investment Manager.

The Fund's Investments are generally in private companies in which there is no listed market and, therefore,
such Investment would teke time to realise and there is no assurance that the valuations placed on the
investments would be achieved from any such sale process.

The Fund's investment companies have borrewings which rank senior to the Fund's own Investments in
these project campanies. The senior debt is structured such that, under normal operating conditions, it will
be repald within the expected life of the projects. Debt raised by the Investment companies from third
parties [s without recourse to the Fund.

The Fund manages its liquidity risk by a combination of (i) contractual uncalled committed capital, which can
be called with 14 days notice and used to fund investments and pay management fees and (fi) maintaining
cash levels to fund short term operating expenses. As at 31 Decernber 2018 the amount for undrawn
commitments was EUR7,287,791 (2017: EUR7,287,791), including a recallable retum of capital
EURZ,024,193 (2017: EUR2,024,193).

The Fund operates as an investment structure whereby the Fund invests and commits to invest into various
portfolio companies indirectly through its subsidiarfes. As at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017,
there were no outstanding capital commitment obligations with respect to specific portfolic company
acquisitions and no amounts due to the pertfollo companies for unsettled purchases.

The following table Tllusirates the expected liquidity of assets held and undrawn capital commitments:

Undrawn
capital Less than 1 More than
As at 31 December 2018 commitments month 1-12 months 12 months
EUR EUR EUR EUR

Total assets and undrawn capital

commitments 7,287,791 - 3,399,796 295,202,105
As at 31 December 2017

Total assets and undrawn capital

commitments 7,287,791 - 7,080,777 292,253,945

The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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81

8.2

FIRANCIAL RTSK MANAGEMNENT (CONTINUED)
Financal visl factors (Continped )
£.1.3 Liguidity risk (continued)

The zble beow amayses the Famd's france! Rizes nie et materly gooangs besed on the
remmEnnG perod @t the regorting dete o the aombradthed maturiky e The amments i the tEbe ae the
cmntraces unvtscoumied: casin foers. AL present; the Fund has no mmediate plars (o ext any of its positions
w5 portfeln of imuestmerts. When the General Pastner 5 of the view thet the disposal of cevtain
nvestments s reltively certain; the asncated net assets RAtrbuiable W tre partners, i o far 25 they ray
be disirbuted, wil be disdosed o the appropriate kquidity category as moted beiow.

On Less than 1 Between 1 More than
demand year and 3 years 3 years Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR B
As at 31 December
2018
Liabilities
Payabes and acoua s - 146,224 - - 146,224
Net assets attnbutable
to the Limited - - - 295,847,708 735,847,708
- 146,224 - 295,847,708 295,993,932
As at 31 December
2017
Liabilities
Payables and accnue’s - 128,732 - - 128,732
Net assets atiributable
to the Limited - - - 295,642,982 295,642,982
- 128,732 - 295,642,982 295,771,714

Capital risk management

The capitat structure of the Fund consists of partners’ capital and pariners’ current accounts.

The General Partner's policy when managing capital is to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide retums for the Limited Partners and to sustain the future development of the business. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund may call undrawn capital from the Limited Partners or raise
medium/iong-term third party debt. Neither the Fund nor any of its Subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

There were no changes in the Fund's approach to capltal management during the year.

32



ABERDEEN EUROPEAN INFRASTRUCTURE PARTNERS LP

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Far the year ended 31 December 2018

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
8.3 Fair value estimation

As at 31 December 2018, 160% (2017 100%) of finandial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise of the
investments in Subsidiaries that has been fair valued in accordance with the polides set out above. The Subsidiaries
are not publidy traded; prior to maturity, an exit can only be made by the Fund through a sale of Its investment and
commitment. in the Subsidiaries through a secondary market. As set out in the LPA, the Fund's objective is to acquire
investments with the intention to recaver the capital invested through distributions received from the Subsidlaries
funded through their realisation of their private equity, debt or infrastructure investment positions. As a result, the
carrying value of the Subsidiaries may be significantly different from the value ultimately realised on an exit via a
secondary market sale. It Is not the objective nor intention of the Fund to exit the Subsidiaries in the secondary
market sale.

As the Subsidiaries are not traded on an active market, and their fair values are determined using valuation
techniques, the value is primarily based on the latest available financial statements of the Subsidiaries as reported by
the Administrator of the Subsidiaries, The Subsidiaries financial statements have been prepared based on the
valuation of the Subsidiaries own underlying investments, The Fund and its Subsidiaries have effectively used the
income approach which discounts the expected cash flows attributable to each asset at an appropriate rate to arrive
at fair values. In determining the discount rate, regard is had to relevant long-term government bond vyields, the
specific risks of each investment and the evidence of recent transactions.

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy consists of the following three levels:
» tevel 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
« Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and
« Llevel 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservable inputs}.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety is
determined on the basis of the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input is assessed against the fair value measurement In its entirety, If a fair value
measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement is a Level 3 measursment. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in Its entirety requires judgement, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ input requires significant judgement by the Fund. The Fund
considers observable data to be that market data that Is readily avallable, regularly distributed or updated, reliable
and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
market,
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8 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
83 Fair valne estimation (continued)

Thee fraiforwng fzble analyses, widvn the far vaie hiesandy, e Fund's vestments measored at 2y vabue:

Level 1 Level 2 Leved 3 Fotal
EUR R R EUR
As at 31 December 2018
Ivestments in Subsidiaries - - 295202105 235,202,105
As at 31 December 2017
Fwestments in Subsidiaries - - 292253845 292,253,945

There were no ransfers between Level 1 and Lewsl 2 during the year. Reconaliabions of Leve! 3 balances are
Cisdosad i the refevant notes as indicated beow. The effed of d¥feront economc assumptions on the Tair value of
the Leve! 3 assets is disc'osed n this note.

el 3 15 comprsed of the investments in Subsidiaries heid by the Furd that s not queted on an active market.

Valuation — the Subsidiary

In determining the fair value of the Subsid'ary, the Fund re’es on the vaksaton as reported in the latest available
financial statements and the underlying valuations of the investment portfolio.

The Irvestment Manager is responsible for monitorng the performance of the Subsdiary and reporting such
performance ip the General Paitner. Where the wnformation prowvided by the Subsidiary’s Administrator s not
congidered appropriate by the Investment Manager and General Partner, the Irvestment Manager will make
amendments to the NAVY obtained as noted above in order to recommend a camying value that more appropriately
reflects the fair value at the Fund reporting date. The General Partner receives such recommendations from the
Investment Manager and is responsible for approving the final valuation of the underlying Subsidiary.

The following summarises the valuation techniques and input used for investments in Subsidiaries categorised in
Leve! 3 as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Significant Range of
Fair value Valuation unobservable discount rate
EUR technique input applied
As at 31 December 2018
Investments in Subsidiaries 295,202,105 Discounted Discount rate 7.75% - 9.35%
cash flow
Reasonable
possible shift Change in
(absolute valuation
value) EUR
Investments in Subsidiaries 5% movement
in discount rate 9,865,236
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8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)
83 Fair value estimation {(continued)

Significant Range of

Fair value Valuation uncbservable discount rate
EUR technique input applied
As at 31 December 2017
Investments in Subsidiaries 292,253,945 Discounted Discount rate 8.00% - 9.35%
cash flow
Reasonable
possible shift Change in
{absolute valuation
value) EUR
Investments in Subsidlaries 5% movement
in discount rate 10,178,169

The change in valuation disdosed In the above table shows the direction a decrease in the respective input variable
would have on the valuation result, For the investments in Subsidiaries, decreases In cost of capitel would lead to an
increase in estimated value.

No interrelationships between unobservable input used In the Fund's valuaton of its Level 3 investments in
Subsidiaries have been identified.

The Fund has recognised unrealised gains of EUR23,910,610 (2017: EUR39,982,240) on its Level 3 investments,
these are Included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as net changes in fair value of financlal assets
through profit or loss.

8.4 Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transters between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have cccurred at the beginning of the reporting
period. There were no such transfers in the current reporting period.

9. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The General Partner makes estimates and assurnptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates

wifl, by definiion, seldom equal the related adual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amaounts of assets and liabliiies are outiined below.
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9. CRITECAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES ARD JUDGEMERTS {OONTINUED)
Finonciall accrts 2t Eir value through profit or Joss

Jwdgemenit

By virue of the Fumnd's stzius as am Svestomenst Entity amd the exermtion. provided by 105 28 and TFRS 11 as well as
the adopiion of Imestyment Ettes {Amerdments o RS 14, TFRS 12 and IAS 77}, westmenis ane desgneted
wporn rltiey! mmgrn o in he acmourted for at fair vaiue theowgh profit or foss.

Estimates

The Fund recogrises the vestment & s dreclly owned Subsidiexies 2t fair value whith includies the Fair value of
each of the mdividua! proyed cormpanies and holdng ompanies ‘= which the Compasy holds am indired: imestment.
Far vauwes for those investments for which 3 market guole s not availallie ae defermned wsing the income
approadh which dsoounts the expeded ash flows at the approprale rate. In deiermng the disoount rate, regard
s had I refevant ongterm governement bond yelds, spedfic nsks and the evidence of recert amsactions. The
Genera! Patner has satishied tse¥ that PPP or similar investrrents share the same ivestment charadtenstics and as
surh consiRude a shgle asset cass for IFRS 7 dsciosune puposes.

Tre range of disoourt rates appied in the December 2018 valuation was 7.75%% ~ 9.35% (2017: 8.00% - 2.35%).
The discoun: rate is considered one of the most sgnificant unohservabie inputs throwgh which an increase or
deaease would have 2 material impact on the fair vakse of the financial assets at fair vaiue trrough profit or loss.
10 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

At 31 December 2018, the Furd held the feilow'ng dasses of finanaal instruments that are measured at fair value
For ali other assets and labilties, their carrying value approximates bo faT value.

Designated at
fair value
Financial assets at  through
amortised cost  profit or loss Total
EUR EUR

As at 31 Decentber 2018
Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries - 295,202,105 295,202,105
Receivables 3,376,949 - 3,376,949
Cash and cash equivalents 22,847 - 22,847

3,399,796 295,202,105 298,601,901
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10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY - {(CONTINUED)

Designated at

fair value
Financial assets at  through
amortised cost  profit or loss Total
EUR EUR EUR
As at December 2017
Assets
Investments in Subsidiaries - 292,253,945 292,253,945
Receivables 7,015,165 - . 7,015,165
Cash and cash equivalents 65,612 - 65,612
7,080,777 292,253,945 299,334,722
Liabilities at
Other financial fair value
liabilities at through
amortised cost  profit or loss Total
EUR EUR EUR
As at Decamber 2018
Liabilities
Payables and accruals 146,224 - 146,224
As at 31 December 2017
Liabilities
Payables and accruals 128,732 - 128,732

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decislons.

As disclosed In the LPA, the General Partner is entitled to receive the General Partner's Share, which is calculated as
a percentage of total Investment acquisition cost during the period. Currently, the Investment related fee income is
in excess of the GP share accrual leaving a balance receivable from the LP of EURnil (2017: EURnil).

During the year, the General Partner charged EUR1,055,169 (2017: EURNI) in respect of General Partner’s Share, of
which EURnil (2017: EURnI) was outstanding at the end of the year. The reduced fee is due to an offset of
investment related fees received by Al (Holdeo) B.V. from its underlying project companies in 2017. These fees
exceeded the prior year General Partner Share charge and hence the charge was reduced with the remaining
balance being credited to deferred income. This amount will be released through the profit and loss account in
subsequent periods in line with clause 9.2(c) of the LPA.

Intercompany loans are disclosed in Note 6.
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12, ULYIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY
The Direcinrs of the General Partner do mat comsigier there e be amy ane il rrate aondnoilicg pety .
13, UNDRAWN COMMITMENTS

&s at 3! Degerber 2018 the Fund bad waddaen oormmitrmenits frors She Lamited Partners of BURT, 287,791 (2017
ELIR7,287.791), including 2 recalatbie meturm of capits! BURE 024, 193 {2017: BUR2,024,193}.

14, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evauated the inpact of al subseguent events on the Company cocuring between the end of the
reporting period and 29 April 21119, the dale the financal! statements were available to be ssued and has determined
that there were no subsequent events requing adhusiment gr adoitionsl declosure at the date of signing this report
and the audted finandal staternents.

15. CONTIGENT LIABILITY

1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Labsites and Contingent Assets sets ouwt the recognition and disdesure oitena for
provisions and contingent liabiities. Canfed Everest regrasents a contingent labfity due to the uncertain timing and
realisable value of the distribution and as such has been discissed in the financia! siatements.

Cf the net assets attrbutable o Lented Partners, if the Partnership’s assets were reaised and the Pacire-ship
terminated as at 31 December 2018 an amount of EURR 658,030 (2017: EUR1,967,000) would be due to the Camed
Interest Partner

The valuation methodology used to determine this fair value is based on a discounted cash flow analysis of the
future expected carry cash flows using the data from the fund models. The fund mode captures the respective fund
share of the investment's expected ‘“uture cash flows which have been extracted from the investments underlying
finandal model. Each mnvestment company produces a detai'ed concesson life financfal model which is subject to
audit. The carry cash flows are calculated in line with the fund LPA clause which addresses the carry hurdles
rates/terms. A discount rate is then applied to these cash flows.

The discount rate applied is 30% which 1s subject to the Investment Managers risk assessment of the performance
of the Fund which directly impacts the carry hurdle rates [ terms as prescribed in the LPA, The investment
performance is affected by, but not limited to Equidity risk, currency risks & market appetite risk including any risks
refated to investmert earnings (e.g. predictability and covenant of the concession income, impairments or write-
downs, underperformance to base case projections, or any outstanding contractual disputes), ail of which may be
differentiated by the investment project phase.
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